
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
REGULAR MEETING March 13, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Pastor Jason Allison, Terra Nova Church 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held February 27, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Recreation Levy Sub-

Committee Meeting held on June 22, 2015.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Historic Preservation 

Commission Meeting held on November 30, 2016. 
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree Commission 

Meeting held on January 24, 2017.  
D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission 

Meeting held on February 1, 2017.  
E. Resolution No. 17-16, a resolution appointing/reappointing 

members to various Boards, Commissions, and/or Committees, 
and specifying the term of the appointments.  

F.  Resolution No. 17-17, a resolution accepting the recommendations 
of the Delaware City Tax Incentive Review Council (TIRC) on the 
status of the 2016 Community Reinvestment Area (CRA), Enterprise 
Zone (EZ) and Tax Increment Financing Programs (TIF). 

G. Resolution No 17-18, a resolution supporting the submittal of a 
grant application to the Local Government Innovation Fund in order 



2 
 

to fund a feasibility study to examine cost saving opportunities from 
fleet vehicle alternative fuel use.       

H. Establish April 10, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. as a date and time for public 
comment and third reading of Resolution No. 17-20, a resolution 
adopting the City of Delaware Bike Plan 2025. 

I. Establish March 27, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-16, an 
ordinance approving an amendment to Chapter 1168.07 
replacement of removed trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation 
Regulations of the Planning and Zoning Code.  

      
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. PRESENTATIONS 

A.  Proclamation presentation to Delaware Hayes’ Girls Swimming 
Conference Champions and State Swimming Meet Qualifiers. 

 
9. 7:15 P.M. PUBLIC COMMENT AND SECOND READING of Resolution No. 

17-14, a resolution authorizing the installation of certain traffic control 
signage to establish a No Parking Anytime Zone on the south side of 
Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive from 105 feet west of Thistle 
Drive to 95 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
intersection and the extension of the No Parking Here to Corner Zone on 
the north side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive to 40 feet west 
of Thistle Drive and 25 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and 
Buehler Drive intersection.  

 
10. SECOND READING of Resolution No. 17-15, a resolution adopting the 

proposed changes to the user fees for Hidden Valley Golf Course. 
 
11. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-10, an ordinance providing for 

the issuance and sale of notes in the maximum aggregate principal 
amount of $11,015,000 in anticipation of the issuance of bonds, for the 
purpose of paying the costs of various public infrastructure 
improvements, together with all related appurtenances thereto, and 
declaring an emergency.  

 
12. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-11, an ordinance amending sections 913.03(a) and 913.14 of Chapter 
913 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Delaware, Ohio establishing 
Tap Fees and Water Rates and Repealing existing Sections 913(a) and 
913.14.  



3 
 

 
13. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-12, an ordinance amending the Refuse Collection and Utility Services 
portions of the Schedule of Fees and Services Charges.  

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-19, a resolution in support of a 

sister city visit to Sakata, Japan.  
 
15. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-20, a resolution accepting the 

City of Delaware’s Bike Master Plan 2025. 
 
16.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-13, an ordinance naming Acting 

City Clerks for the City of Delaware, and declaring an emergency.   
 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-14, an ordinance permitting the 

sale and consumption of alcohol by the Greenswell Foundation c/o New 
Moon Half & Quarter Marathon Event to be held May 27, 2017, course 
map attached hereto, in the City of Delaware. 

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-15, an ordinance declaring 

structures located at 821 Cheshire Road as not needed for municipal 
purposes, authorizing the sale of the structures at auction, and declaring 
an emergency.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-16, an ordinance approving an 

amendment to Chapter 1168.07 replacement of removed trees of Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of the Planning and Zoning Code.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-17, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide funding for issuance of 
refunds received for a fire loss that occurred at 48 High Street, and 
declaring an emergency.  

 
21.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-18, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 2.856 acres of land, more or less, description and map are 
attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as Fire 
Station #304 Annexation by David Moser, Agent for the Petitioners, the 
City of Delaware.  

 
22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-19, an ordinance for T&R 

Properties approving a Final Development Plan for the Enclave at Adalee 
consisting of 96 single family attached units on approximately 15.18 
acres zoned R-6 PUD (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned 
Unit Overlay District) located on the west side of South Houk Road just 



4 
 

north of Arthur Place. 
 
23. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-20, an ordinance for T&R 

Properties approving a Final Subdivision Plat Plan for the Enclave at 
Adalee consisting of 96 single family attached units on approximately 
15.18 acres zoned R-6 PUD (Multi-Family Residential District with a 
Planned Unit Overlay District) located on the west side of South Houk 
Road just north of Arthur Place.  

 
24. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
25. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
26. ADJOURNMENT 















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 03/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-16 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING/REAPPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE 
TERM OF THE APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-16 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING/REAPPOINTING 
MEMBERS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, 
AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM 
OF THE APPOINTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointments are hereby made: 
 
1. Board of Zoning Appeals Commission – Paul Junk-Reappointment 

(Term November 30, 2016 – November 30, 2019) 
2. Board of Zoning Appeals Commission -  Beth Fisher - Reappointment 

(Term November 30, 2016 – November 30, 2019) 
3. Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee – Robert Ruh, Jr.- New 

Appointment (filling unexpired term December 31, 2015 to  December 
31, 2017) 

4. Historic Preservation Commission – Stephanie Van Gundy- New 
Appointment (Term December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2019) 

5. Sister City Advisory Board – Julie Means- New Appointment (Term 
January 1, 2017 to January 1, 2020) 

6.  
SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 03/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-17 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECOMENDATIONS OF THE DELAWARE CITY TAX 
INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL (TIRC) ON THE STATUS OF THE 2016 COMMUNITY 
REINVESTMENT AREA (CRA), ENTERPRISE ZONE (EZ) AND TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING PROGRAMS (TIF). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
City of Delaware is required, under Ohio Revised Code Sections 3735.69 and 5709.68 
to submit an annual report regarding the status of each Agreement by March 31, to the 
Director of the Ohio Development Services Agency. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
In order to maintain and continue commercial and residential tax 
exemptions/abatements (Enterprise Zone, Community Reinvestment Area and Tax 
Increment Financing Agreements), authorized per the Ohio Revised Code and City 
Resolutions and Ordinances, the City of Delaware legislative authority must appoint a 
Tax Incentive Review Council (TIRC).  The TIRC annually reviews and makes 
recommendations to City Council to Continue, Modify or Terminate each tax abatement 
agreement.  City Council’s decisions to accept or change the TIRC’s recommendations 
are annually reported to the Ohio Department of Development no later than March 31.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Tax Incentive Review Council, 2/21/17 
VOTE: Approval  
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
COST: N/A 
FUND SOURCES: N/A 
BUDGETED: NO 
 
DEPARTMENTS IMPACTED: Economic Development 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
2017 TIRC Sign-in Sheet 
2017 TIRC Minutes 
2017 CRA and EZ Abatements Status Report Summary Spreadsheet 
2017 TIFs Status Report Summary Spreadsheet 
2017 Residential CRA Abatements Status Report Summary Spreadsheet 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-17 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE DELAWARE CITY TAX 
INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL (TIRC) ON THE STATUS 
OF THE 2016 COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
(CRA), ENTERPRISE ZONE (EZ), AND TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING (TIF) PROGRAMS.  
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Delaware City CRA, EZ and TIF Programs 
is to provide the community with an effective tool for managing and guiding 
economic development by enhancing the tax base, by encouraging and 
sustaining long term investment in the community, by enhancing the quality of 
life, and by preserving existing and attracting new business investment within 
said Programs; and 

WHEREAS, the duly appointed Delaware City Tax Incentive  Review 
Council (TIRC) met on February 21, 2017, and reviewed the status of each active 
agreement and made certain recommendations concerning action to  either 
continue, modify, terminate or expire said agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is required, under Ohio Revised Code 
Sections 3735.69 and 5709.68 to submit an annual report regarding the status 
of each Agreement by March 31, to the Director of the Ohio Development Services 
Agency. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware as follows: 

SECTION 1:  That the review and recommendations made by the TIRC in 
the Meeting Minutes on this Resolution’s Fact Sheet and the Fact Sheet 
Attachments “2017 Tax Incentive Review Council Summary Tax Year 2016,”  
“2017 Tax Incentive Review Council Tax Year 2016 City of Delaware TIF Zones” 
and the "2017 Residential CRA Status Report Tax Year 2016" be accepted and 
that these reports, and all other information required by the State of Ohio be 
accepted by the Council of the  City of Delaware and be forwarded to the Director 
of the Ohio Development Services Agency, and all other appropriate entities, as 
noted in ORC Sections 3735.69 and 5709.68. 

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage. 



Passed: ____________________________, 2017 Yeas _____ Nays _____  

Abstain _____ 
 

Attest:  ____________________________  _______________________________ 
 City Clerk     Mayor 





  

 
 

 
CITY OF DELAWARE TAX INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL (TIRC) MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 

4:00 p.m. 
City Hall- CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

1. Call to Order  

Honorable George Kaitsa called to order the 2016 TIRC at 4:03 PM.   

2. Roll Call 

Members Present: Honorable George Kaitsa, Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle, Emily Hatfield, Dean Stelzer, 

Melissa Lee, Chris Bell, and Tom Homan  

Members Absent (Excused): Tim Wells, Carl Johnson 

Staff Present: Sean Hughes, Kelsey Scott 

3. Consent Agenda: 2016 CRA/EZ Tax Abatement Reports 

Mr. Hughes explained that 10 CRA/EZ (Toolmatics, Howald Industrial, Symmetry One, Sky Climber, 

AHP/Domtar, NABI, American Freight, Henkel, Optimum Plastics, Engineered Materials Systems) 

were in compliance with their total payroll goals and new and retained full time employee (FTE) 

goals. Mayor Riggle asked where Inno-pak is on the consent agenda. Mr. Hughes explained they are 

on the consideration agenda because their abatement expired. Mr. Homan asked how Domtar is 

doing. Discussion followed. Mr. Homan made a motion to recommend compliance and continuation 

on the consent agenda abatement agreements to the City Council, seconded by Mayor Riggle and 

approved by a 8-0 vote.  

4. Consideration Agenda: CRA 06-001 Judd Scott/V&P Hydraulics 

Mr. Hughes explained that V&P Hydraulics  has fallen short of commitments with 54 new FTEs out of 

their 65 FTE agreement, but that they are still exceeding their payroll goal with $2,932,107.99 of 

their $2,300,000 goal. Mr. Judd Scott is hopeful the market will improve and they will meet their FTE 



 

goal by the end of 2017. Mr. Hughes recommended finding V&P Hydraulics in non-compliance but 

continuing the abatement until the end of 2017 to allow them to meet their FTE goal by the end of the 

year. Mr. Homan made a motion to find V&P Hydraulics in non-compliance but continue the 

abatement for one year with the company reporting its FTE count to Mr. Hughes quarterly. The 

motion was seconded by Mayor Riggle and approved by a 8-0 vote. 

5. Consideration Agenda: EZ 05-02 Inno-pak, Inc. 

Mr. Hughes explained the EZ  Agreement for Innopak, Inc. expired on December 31, 2015, therefore, 

the Council can expire their CRA agreement.  

 

6. Tax Increment Finance Districts (TIF)  

Mr. Hughes reported that 9 active TIF agreements are in compliance by having had their respective 

payments in lieu of taxes on real property paid, distributed to the City to be deposited in individual 

project accounts, and, then having funds from those account distributed as respective project related 

payments when applicable. Mr. Bell made a motion to recommend compliance and continuation, 

seconded by Mayor Riggle and approved by a 8-0 vote.  

7. Residential CRA Agreements  

Mr. Hughes reported that all 34 Residential CRA agreements are active and in compliance (residential 

improvements had been made and remaining non-abated taxes were up to date). Mayor Riggle asks 

why apartment complexes are under Residential CRAs and not Commercial CRAs. Mr. Hughes 

explained that although they are commercial, from a CRA perspective they are treated as residential. 

Mayor Riggle asked why the improvement cost is so large on the 2015-02 – 36 Griswold St. property. 

Discussion ensued. Ms. Lee made a motion to recommend compliance and continue all Residential 

CRA agreements to City Council, seconded by Mr. Bell and approved by a 8-0 vote.  

8. School Pilot Programs 

Mr. Hughes discussed that all current school pilot payments were up to date. He reminded the school 



 

 

districts to invoice the City of Delaware for the Engineered Materials Systems pilot payment for 2017 

(tax year 2016). 

Adjournment  

Meeting was adjourned at 4:34 PM.  

 

 
 



2017 Tax Incentive Review Council Summary
Tax Year 2016

2017  TIRC Summary Job & Payroll Creation                                    Real & Personal Property Investment

CRA Company Years/Abatement % Year of 
Expiration Total Payroll Goal Retained Payroll 

Goal New Payroll Goal Current Total Payroll Current Retained 
Payroll Current New Payroll % Achieved FTE Goal Retained FTE Goal New FTE 

Goal
Current 

Total FTE
Current 

Retained FTE
Current New 

FTE % Achieved Parcel # Taxes Paid in 2016 Total Taxes Paid 
thru Last Report

Total Taxes Paid Thru 
12/31/2016

Taxes Forgone in 
2016

Total Taxes 
Forgone Thru Last 

Report

Total Taxes 
Forgone Thru 
12/31/2016

CRA 03-002 ToolMatics 15/100% 12/31/2018 $375,000.00 $250,000.00 $375,000.00 $670,280.82 $250,000.00 $420,280.82 179% 16 7 5.5 13 7 6 81% 41921001006002 $1,820.78 $17,989.56 $19,810.34 $11,666.00 $127,842.17 $139,508.17
CRA 04-002 Howald Industrial 10/100% 12/31/2016 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $1,061,188.98 $0.00 $1,061,188.98 1061% 6 0 6 30 0 30 500% 51934418007000 $39,709.88 $403,987.38 $443,697.26 $16,820.78 $172,836.34 $189,657.12
CRA 04-004 Symmetry One 15/100% 12/31/2019 $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $2,309,720.00 $0.00 $2,309,720.00 426% 15 0 15 45 0 45 300% Multiple $5,244.48 $53,441.48 $58,685.96 $67,654.78 $554,098.99 $621,753.77
CRA 06-001 V&P Hydraulics 15/50% 12/31/2022 $2,300,000.00 $0.00 $2,300,000.00 $2,932,107.99 $0.00 $2,932,107.99 127% 65 0 65 54 0 54 83% 41922001006003 $25,841.70 $158,811.48 $184,653.18 $19,816.99 $131,502.52 $151,319.51
CRA 06-002 Sky Climber 15/50% 12/31/2022 $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00 $3,731,264.00 $0.00 $3,731,264.00 187% 45 0 45 59 0 59 131% 41922001006002 $25,581.00 $214,022.00 $239,603.00 $8,291.00 $172,047.18 $180,338.18

CRA 06-003
Associated Hygienic 
Products 15/75% 12/31/2022 $7,480,879.00 $0.00 $7,480,879.00 $12,155,836.00 $0.00 $12,155,836.00 162% 201 0 201 252 0 252 125% 41922002001000 $104,811.00 $940,111.48 $1,044,922.48 $322,710.00 $1,977,662.41 $2,300,372.41

CRA 07-001 NABI Parts Division 15/50% 12/31/2023 $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00 $4,583,293.00 $0.00 $4,538,293.00 227% 45 0 45 85 0 85 189% 41922002001001 $105,763.80 $538,898.70 $644,662.50 $170,865.00 $501,793.11 $672,658.11
CRA 10-001 American Freight 10/50% 12/31/2021 $2,120,000.00 $1,870,000.00 $250,000.00 $2,651,939.94 $1,870,000.00 $781,939.94 313% 35 30 5 68 30 38 194% 51944403010000 $22,981.90 $107,333.74 $130,315.64 $5,500.98 $21,986.88 $27,487.86

CRA 10-002 Henkel 10/40% 12/31/2021 $2,503,061.00 $2,400,000.00 $103,061.00 $2,882,210.00 $2,400,000.00 $482,210.00 115% 47 42 5 47 42 5 100%
41921105009000 
41921105022000 $71,362.80 $274,219.64 $345,582.44 $22,368.96 $90,959.76 $113,328.72

CRA 11-001 Optimum Plastics     10/100% 12/31/2022 $3,000,000.00 $2,800,000.00 $200,000.00 $3,239,342.00 $2,800,000.00 $439,342.00 108.00% 63 55 8 72 55 17 114% 41922001017005 $11,009.00 $45,814.00 $56,823.00 $11,009.00 $22,511.00 $33,520.00

CRA __-___

Engineered Material 
Systems (101 
Innovation Court)

15/100%
12/31/2030 $3,400,000.00 $2,700,000.00 $700,000.00 $3,500,000.00 $2,700,000.00 $800,000.00 103% 47 39 8 48 39 9 102% 41922002003002 $11,805.60 $0.00 $11,805.60 $99,156.00 $0.00 $99,156.00

EZ 05-02 Innopak, Inc.

10/100% on personal 
property

12/31/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 41922001006001 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total: $25,728,940.00 $10,020,000.00 $15,958,940.00 $39,717,182.73 $10,020,000.00 $29,652,182.73 585 173 408.5 773 173 600 $425,931.94 $2,754,629.46 $3,180,561.40 $755,859.49 $3,773,240.36 $4,529,099.85



2017 Tax Incentive Review Council
Tax Year 2016

City of delaware tif zones
Area Total Amount Disbursed Amount to City Expires Notes

Airport #527- Jet Stream, Airspace $25,146.83 $25,146.83 2027
Improvement of intersection, utilities, 

ramps near airport
#565- Braumiller Subdivision $156,243.44 $156,243.44 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#562- Cheshire North $204,825.97 $204,825.97 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#563- Cheshire South $18,530.46 $18,530.46 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#564- Cheshire West $99,973.32 $99,973.32 2036 Glenn Parkway addition
#566- Evans Residential $0.00 $0.00 2036 Glenn Parkway addition

#776- Southeast Commercial $0.00 $0.00 2037
For road improvments surrounding Ohio 

Health Blvd.

#945- Skyclimber & V&P Hydraulics $30,931.87 $0.00 2037
Payment of costs for acquring V&P and 

Skyclimber parcels
#1088- Zaremba- Mill Run $121,320.95 $0.00 2039 Paid to developer for Glenn Parkway

Total $656,972.84 $504,720.02



2017 Residential CRA Status Report
Tax Year 2016

Name/Property Identification Date Project 
Certified

Percent of 
Exemption

Term of 
Exemption Total Project Investment

Total Real Property 
Investment Subject to 

Exemption

Date of Most 
Recent Council 

Review

2014-06 100% 7 yrs $87,036.54 $87,036.54 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2,127.94

Dennis Ensign
5 Stilson Street 8/28/2014
41912202005000
1 family new construction

2014-05 100% 7 yrs $91,434.46 $91,434.46 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2235.46

Christopher Shelly
56 Kurrley Street 9/10/2014
51944307007000
1 family new construction

2014-04 100% 7 yrs 137,000.00 137,000.00 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3349.49
David O Summers
126 Wilder Street 5/9/2014
5194427005000
1 family new construction

2014-03 100% 7 yrs 50,000.00 50,000.00 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 1222.44
James P. Manos
9B N. Sandusky Street 4/30/2014
Remodel 2nd floor to residential

2014-01 100% 7 yrs 111,112.80 111,112.80 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2716.58
Kathleen G. Crawford
47 High Street 1/27/2014
51942823006000
1 family new construction

2013-01 100% 7 yrs 102,751.49 102,751.49 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2512.15
Raul and Caolina Olvera
57 Stilson Street 6/24/2013
41912202013000
1 family new construction

2013-02 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units A & B 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-03 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units C & D 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction

2013-04 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units E & F 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction

2013-05 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units G & H 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-06 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street, Units I & J 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-07 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street Unit K & L 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-08 100% 7 yrs 160,000 (80,000 per unit) 160,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 3911.81
Delaware Place Senior Apartments, LLC
351 South Sandusky Street Unit M & N 8/2/2013
41912102034000
1 family new construction 

2013-09 100% 7 yrs 113,580.12 113,580.12 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2776.9
Erica McCuen
85 Chamberlain Street 11/7/2013
51944208010000
1 family new construction

2012-04 100% 7 yrs 99,596.63 $99,596.63 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2435.02
Steffan Gregory A & Karen M (formerly under KATHRYN C. RICHLEY)
81 Chamberlain Street 12/4/2012
51944208009000
1  family new construction 

2012-03 100% 7 yrs 94,052.07 94,052.07 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2299.46
WALTER & TERRESA JONES, JR.
24 Eaton Street 6/28/2012
51943311023000
1 family new construction 

2012-02 100% 7 yrs $97,729.26 $97,729.26 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2389.37
FATMATA O'CONNER
135 S Liberty Street 5/14/2012
51943310011000
Residential new construction

2012-01 3/23/2012 100% 7 yrs $97,411 $97,411 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2381.58
JEFFERY & TAMMY SCOTT
91Wilder Street
51944204007000
Residential new construction
2011-01 5/23/2011 100% 7 yrs $31,000 $31,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 757.91
LESLIE COX
292 Union St

Current Status



51943103006000
Residential remodel
2011-02 9/19/2011 100% 7 yrs $87,198.88 $87,198.88 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
CINDY MARTIN
11 Stilson St
41912202004000
Residential new construction
2010-02 7/27/2010 100% 7 yrs $200,000 $200,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
CROMDALE PARTNERS LLC
MANOS JAMES 
32 South Sandusky St.
Commercial renovation
5194330102900
2010-03 9/3/2010 100% 7 yrs $96,823.54 $96,823.54 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
Moore Franklin & Bernice
125 S. Liberty St.
Habitat residential new const.
51943310010000
2010-04 12/13/2010 100% 7 yrs $100,000 $100,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
Miller Steven L & Pamela K
290 N. Sandusky St.
51943104008000 - 290 N Sandusky St.
51943104009000 - Sandusky St.
Residential renovation
2010-05 12/13/2010 100% 7 yrs $108,000 $108,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
Delaware County Habitat For Humanity
305 Curtis St.
51934418002000
Habitat residential new const.
2009-01 100% 7 yrs $75,360 $75,360 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
MURFIELD TROY M & BLYTHE STEFANIE  R Expired
18 Neil Street
41912202001000
2009-02 100% 7 yrs $85,067 $85,067 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
LESKOVEC JEANNE R
74 W. Harrison 4/20/2009
51943315019000
2009-03 100% 7 yrs $98,714 $98,714 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
Pamela K. Co3/17/11
60 High St. 11/3/2009
51943321027000 R
2009-04 100% 7 yrs $100,000 $100,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
Manos Properties (James Manos) R
34 S. Sandusky 2nd & 3rd flr. 12/16/2009
51943301028000
00-2 5/16/2000 100% 15 yrs $60,000 $60,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
H. & V. Caldwell R Expired
69 Frank St.
51943403019000
00-1 R 100% 15 yrs new $59,191 $59,191 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 1447.15
PIERCE L & JEFFREY S 1/10/2000 7 yrs remodel expired
569 Bowtown Rd.
51944210021001
2015-05 12/21/2015 100% 7 yrs $107,161 $107,161 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2619.95
Jamison Bryant
51 Toledo Street
51934403002000
2015-04 9/30/2015 100% 7 yrs $106,762 $106,762 2/23/2016 Active/Paid
Kiana Jones
167 Park Avenue
51943311006000
2015-03 6/18/2015 100% 7 yrs $110,441 $110,441 2/23/2016 Active/Paid $2,700 
Chris and Marcia Ball as applicants, owned 
by Habitat for Humanity
93 W Harrison Street
51943320015000
2015-02 6/8/2015 100% 7 yrs $428,000 $428,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 10,464.10
Griswold Homes
36 Griswold Street
51943210012001
2015-01 1/13/2015 100% 7 yrs $110,000 $110,000 2/23/2016 Active/Paid 2689.37
Brittany Murfield
51 Stilson Street
41912202012000
2016-01 3/10/2016 100% 7 yrs $102,187 102,187 2498.35
Adam Kroninger and Jessica Bittinger
55 David St. 

51943324008000
New residential structure

2016-02 11/14/2016 100% 7 yrs $93,429.57 $93,429.57 2284.24
Rebecca Hughes
181 S. Franklin St. 

51943316008000
New residential structure

106,622.28

$1,467 

$2,610 

$2,445 

$2,413 

$1,842 

$2,080 

$2,640.47 

$2,367.22 

$2,445 

$2,132 

$4,890 



  ORDINANCE FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM G DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-18 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  

 A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE SUBMITTAL OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND IN ORDER TO FUND A 
FEASIBILITY STUDY TO EXAMINE COST SAVING OPPORTUNITIES FROM 
FLEET VEHICLE ALTERNATIVE FUEL USE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware along with various local partners recognize that  fleet vehicle 
operations have significant financial and environmental costs, and that 
maximizing operational cost-effectiveness and environmental performance of 
fleet vehicles is in the interest of taxpayers and community health.   
 
Through the Local Government Innovation Fund Program, by the State of Ohio, 
there are available funds to study fleet vehicle alternative fuel use.  A partnership 
has been formed between The City of Delaware, Delaware County, Delaware City 
Schools, DATA and Delaware County Sheriff’s Department in order to maximize 
application competitiveness, provide program efficiencies, and reduce overall 
costs. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
As the lead entity, the City of Delaware City Council needs to pass legislation to 
support the submittal of a grant application to the Local Government Innovation 
Fund.  
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
If the partnership is successful, the indirect financial impact will be staff’s time 
dedicated to the project.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Not at this time 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends passage of this resolution 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-18 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE SUBMITTAL OF A 
GRANT APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
INNOVATION FUND IN ORDER TO FUND A 
FEASIBILITY STUDY TO EXAMINE COST SAVING 
OPPORTUNITIES FROM FLEET VEHICLE 
ALTERNATIVE FUEL USE. 

 
WHEREAS, fleet vehicles perform important services for residents and the 

community, including emergency response, infrastructure maintenance, and 
administrative functions; and 
 

WHEREAS, fleet vehicle operations have significant financial and 
environmental costs; and 
 

WHEREAS, maximizing operational cost-effectiveness and environmental 
performance of fleet vehicles is the interest of taxpayers and community health; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that this study will provide vital information 
on options for improving fleet cost-effectiveness, efficiency, and environmental 
performance; and 
 

WHEREAS, a collaborative effort with Delaware County, Delaware City 
Schools, DATA and Delaware County Sheriff’s Department will maximize 
application competitiveness, provide program efficiencies, and reduce overall 
costs. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Council of the City of Delaware 
Ohio supports the submittal of a grant application to the Local Government 
Innovation Fund for a feasibility study to examine cost saving opportunities from 
fleet vehicle use of alternative fuels and efficiency technologies. 
 

SECTION 1. By passage of this Resolution, City Council authorizes the 
City Manager to execute and accept the grant, if awarded.  
 
 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
PASSED:                        , 2017  YEAS      NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________  ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 9    DATE: 03/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-14 
 
READING:  SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       Public Comment to be held  
                                                              March 13, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC 
CONTROL SIGNAGE TO ESTABLISH A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE FROM 105 
FEET WEST OF THISTLE DRIVE TO 95 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE 
LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE INTERSECTION AND THE 
EXTENSION OF THE NO PARKING HERE TO CORNER ZONE ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE TO 40 FEET WEST 
OF THISTLE DRIVE AND 25 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE LEXINGTON 
BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE INTERSECTION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A resident requested the City to evaluate the curved roadway section of Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive from Thistle Drive to just south of the Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection in regards to speeding and accident 
history.  Staff reviewed the accident history and noted there have been five (5) 
accidents in the past five (5) years along this section of roadway.  Staff also 
collected speed data at 684 Buehler Drive and 200 Lexington Boulevard and 
found the 85th percentile speed to be 32 mph and 31 mph respectively.  Due to 
the accident history and high speeds along this section of Lexington Boulevard 
and Buehler Drive, staff recommended that traffic calming measures be 
implemented to improve the safety and reduce vehicular speeds along the curve.  



The traffic calming measures recommended include the installation of a No 
Parking Anytime Zone on the south side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler 
Drive from 105 feet west of Thistle Drive to 95 feet southeast of the Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection and an extension of the No Parking 
Here to Corner Zone on the north side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
to 40 feet west of Thistle Drive and 25 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard 
and Buehler Drive intersection.  Additional no parking here to corner signage 
will be installed per codified ordinance 351.03 on the north side of Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive at the two intersections along the curve.  Pavement 
markings will also be installed to effectively narrow the travel lanes to encourage 
lower speeds. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the February 20, 2017 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost to install the signage and pavement markings is estimated at $2,500.00 
to come out of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating and 
professional services budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-14 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION 
OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE TO 
ESTABLISH A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND 
BUEHLER DRIVE FROM 105 FEET WEST OF 
THISTLE DRIVE TO 95 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE 
LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE 
INTERSECTION AND THE EXTENSION OF THE NO 
PARKING HERE TO CORNER ZONE ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER 
DRIVE TO 40 FEET WEST OF THISTLE DRIVE AND 
25 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE LEXINGTON 
BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE INTERSECTION. 
 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Zones have been requested so as to 
implement traffic calming measures to improve safety and reduce vehicular 
speeds on Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive; and 

 
WHEREAS, there is no current signage prohibiting parking in this area; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed this 

modification by a 3-0 vote at the February 20, 2017 meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The No Parking Anytime Zone will be established on the 
south side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive from 105 feet west of 
Thistle Drive to 95 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
intersection and the No Parking Here to Corner Zone will be extended on the 
north side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive to 40 feet west of Thistle 
Drive and 25 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
intersection. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-15 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE USER FEES 
FOR HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Following discussion by City Council regarding revenue and expenditures at the 
Hidden Valley Golf Course during the 2017 budget process, the Hidden Valley 
Golf Course Working Group was formed to review the current fee structure. Over 
the course of three meetings, the Hidden Valley Golf Course Working Group met 
to discuss changes to the fees and other impacts, all included to make the course 
become more self-sustaining. The proposed changes were forwarded to the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Board for their consideration. The Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board endorsed the proposed changes for the 2017 season and 
requested City Council’s adoption.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To increase revenues at Hidden Valley Golf Course and to align prices to be 
competitive with regional averages. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Hidden Valley Working Group proposed the changes at their November 29, 
2016, meeting and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorsed the 
changes at their January 17, 2017, meeting. 
 



 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The changes should increase the total revenue generated at the Hidden Valley 
Golf Course during the 2017 season and will result in the reduction of general 
fund transfers. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Hidden Valley Working Group Notes of November 29, 2016 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Motion Summary of January 17, 2017 
2016 Regional Golf Course Rate Comparison 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-15 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO THE USER FEES FOR HIDDEN VALLEY 
GOLF COURSE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidden Valley Working Group reviewed the current rate 

structure for user fees at Hidden Valley Golf Course; and 
 

WHEREAS, recommended changes to the existing rate structure for the 
2017 season to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorses the 

recommend rate structure changes for the 2017 season as outlined in the 
attached exhibit; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  Adopt the proposed rate structure changes for the 2017 
season at Hidden Valley Golf Course as outlined in the attached exhibit. 

 
That this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 



2017 
HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE  

PRICING PROPOSAL 
 

  
• Memberships and Punch Card Rates will remain the same for 2017 
• Riding Carts will be $6.00/9 holes and $9.00 for 18 holes 
• Single and Senior rates will be increased by $0.50 for the first 9 holes for all time periods with the second 9 holes being an extra $4.50 
• A new “Junior Student” category will be created; this will be for up to 12 years old and rates for 9 holes will be $5.00 M-F and $6.00 Sat, 

Sun & Holidays 
• The “Student” category will be for ages 13-22 years old and the rates will be $7.00 M-F and $8.00 Sat, Sun & Holidays  

 
Comparison of current and proposed fees: 
 
CURRENT 
 
       Classification  9 Holes M-F              18 Holes M-F                       9 Holes Sat/Sun/Hol             18 Holes Sat/Sun/Hol 

Single $8.50 $13.00 $9.50 $13.50 
Senior/Veteran $8.00 $12.50 $9.00 $13.00 

Student $8.00 $12.50 $9.00 $13.00 
 
PROPOSED 
 
    Classification  9 Holes M-F             18 Holes M-F                      9 Holes Sat/Sun/Hol              18 Holes Sat/Sun/Hol 

Single $9.00 $13.50 $10.00 $14.00 
Senior/Veteran $8.50 $13.00 $9.50 $13.50 
Junior Student  $5.00 $9.50 $6.00 $10.50 

Student $7.00 $11.50 $8.00 $12.50 

 

 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-10    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE 
MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $11,015,000 IN 
ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING 
THE COSTS OF VARIOUS PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS, 
TOGETHER WITH ALL RELATED APPURTENANCES THERETO, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

BACKGROUND: 
This ordinance authorizes the re-issuance of one-year bond anticipation notes 
related to the Glenn Road New Community Authority (NCA) financing 
($10,565,000) and the City’s sidewalk maintenance program ($450,000).  The 
Glenn Road notes have been re-issued each year since the original borrowing in 
2005.  The 2017 amount represents a reduction in the outstanding principal of 
$650,000.  The sidewalk notes are being re-issued to facilitate spreading the city 
cost of the sidewalk improvement program over several years.  When the project 
is complete this year it is estimated that we will continue to allocate $125,000 
per year through 2021 in our CIP to pay off the outstanding notes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The current outstanding bond anticipation notes issued last year mature on 
April 13, 2017.  This legislation is needed to generate the funds to pay off the 
maturing principal amount of $11,665,000.  The City’s financing strategy relative 



to the Glenn Road NCA debt is to continue the practice of issuing one year notes 
with gradual pay down of principal. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Included in 2017 Budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Go to second reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo from Finance Director 
Fiscal Officer’s Certificate 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-10 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE 
AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE MAXIMUM 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $11,015,000 IN 
ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF VARIOUS 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS, 
TOGETHER WITH ALL RELATED APPURTENANCES 
THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 16-13 passed March 14, 2016, 
notes in anticipation of bonds in the aggregate amount of $11,665,000, dated 
April 14, 2016 (the “Outstanding Notes”), were issued for the component 
purposes stated in Section 1, to mature on April 13, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines that the City should retire 
the Outstanding Notes with the proceeds of the Notes described in Section 3 
and other funds available to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance, as fiscal officer of this City, has 
certified to this Council that the estimated life or period of usefulness of each 
component of the Improvement described in Section 1 is at least five years, and 
(i) the estimated maximum maturity of the $2,135,000 portion of the Bonds 
described in clause (a) of Section 1 is thirteen (13) years, and the maximum 
maturity of the portion of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in 
anticipation of that portion of the Bonds, is July 28, 2025, (ii) the estimated 
maximum maturity of the $4,250,000 portion of the Bonds described in clause 
(a) of Section 1 is fourteen (14) years, and the maximum maturity of the portion 
of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of that portion 
of the Bonds, is May 11, 2026, (iii) the estimated maximum maturity of the 
$4,180,000 portion of the Bonds described in clause (b) of Section 1 is 
seventeen (17) years, and the maximum maturity of the portion of the Notes 
described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of that portion of the Bonds, 
is December 22, 2029 and (iv) the estimated maximum maturity of the 
$450,000 portion of the Bonds described in clause (c) of Section 1 is twenty 
(20) years, and the maximum maturity of the portion of the Notes described in 
Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of that portion of the Bonds, is April 22, 
2034; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by The Council of The City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 

Section 1.  It is necessary to issue bonds of this City in the maximum 
aggregate principal amount of $11,015,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of 
paying the costs of (a) constructing Glenn Road between certain termini by 



- 2 - 

constructing, excavating, grading and paving, installing drainage, sanitary 
sewer laterals, street lighting, conduit, curbs and gutters, signage, traffic 
pavement markings, street signs, landscaping, and acquiring interests in real 
estate, together with all necessary appurtenances thereto, (b) improving the 
intersection of U.S. Route 23 and Peachblow Road by constructing, excavating, 
grading and paving, installing drainage, street lighting, conduit, signalization, 
curbs and gutters, signage, traffic pavement markings, landscaping, and 
acquiring interests in real estate, together with all necessary appurtenances 
thereto and (c) the construction, renovation and improvement of pedestrian 
sidewalks throughout the City, together with all necessary appurtenances 
thereto (collectively, the “Improvement”). 

Section 2.  The Bonds shall be dated approximately April 1, 2018, shall 
bear interest at the now estimated rate of 6.00% per year, payable 
semiannually until the principal amount is paid, and are estimated to mature 
in (i) thirteen (13) annual principal installments with respect to the $2,135,000 
portion of the Bonds allocated to the component purpose described in 
clause (a) of Section 1, (ii) fourteen (14) annual principal installments with 
respect to the $4,250,000 portion of the Bonds allocated to the component 
purpose described in clause (a) of Section 1, (iii) seventeen (17) annual 
principal installments with respect to the $4,180,000 portion of the Bonds 
allocated to the component purpose described in clause (b) of Section 1 and (iv) 
twenty (20) annual principal installments with respect to the $450,000 portion 
of the Bonds allocated to the component purpose described in clause (c) of 
Section 1, and in each case on December 1 of each year.  The portion of the 
Bonds issued for the component purposes described in clauses (a) and (b) of 
Section 1 shall mature in such amounts that the total principal and interest 
payments on that portion of the Bonds in any fiscal year in which principal is 
payable is not more than three times the amount of those payments in any 
other fiscal year.  The portion of the Bonds issued for the component purpose 
described in clause (c) of Section 1 shall mature in such amounts that the total 
principal and interest payments on that portion of the Bonds in any fiscal year 
in which principal is payable shall be substantially equal.  The first principal 
payment of the Bonds is estimated to be December 1, 2018. 

Section 3.  It is necessary to issue and this Council determines that 
notes in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $11,015,000 (the “Notes”) 
shall be issued in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds for the purpose 
described in Section 1 and to retire, together with other funds available to the 
City, the Outstanding Notes and to pay any financing costs.  The aggregate 
principal amount of Notes to be issued (not to exceed the stated maximum 
amount) shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the certificate 
awarding the Notes in accordance with Section 6 of this Ordinance (the 
“Certificate of Award”) as the amount which, along with other available funds of 
the City, is necessary to provide for the retirement of the Outstanding Notes 
and to pay any financing costs.  The Notes shall be dated the date of issuance 



- 3 - 

and shall mature not more than one year following the date of issuance, 
provided that the Director of Finance shall establish the maturity date in the 
Certificate of Award.  The Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to 
exceed 6.00% per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve 30-day months), payable at maturity and until the principal amount is 
paid or payment is provided for.  The rate or rates of interest on the Notes shall 
be determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award in 
accordance with Section 6 of this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  The debt charges on the Notes shall be payable in lawful 
money of the United States of America, or in Federal Reserve funds of the 
United States of America as determined by the Director of Finance in the 
Certificate of Award, and shall be payable, without deduction for services of the 
City’s paying agent, at the office of a bank or trust company designated by the 
Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award after determining that the 
payment at that bank or trust company will not endanger the funds or 
securities of the City and that proper procedures and safeguards are available 
for that purpose or at the office of the Director of Finance if agreed to by the 
Director of Finance and the original purchaser (the “Paying Agent”).  The 
Director of Finance is authorized, to the extent necessary or appropriate, to 
enter into an agreement with the Paying Agent in connection with the services 
to be provided by the Paying Agent after determining that the signing thereof 
will not endanger the funds or securities of the City. 

Section 5.  The Notes shall be signed by the City Manager and Director of 
Finance, in the name of the City and in their official capacities, provided that 
one of those signatures may be a facsimile.  The Notes shall be issued in 
minimum denominations of $100,000 (and may be issued in denominations in 
such amounts in excess thereof as requested by the original purchaser and 
approved by the Director of Finance) and with numbers as requested by the 
original purchaser and approved by the Director of Finance.  The entire 
principal amount may be represented by a single note and may be issued as 
fully registered securities (for which the Director of Finance will serve as note 
registrar) and in book entry or other uncertificated form in accordance with 
Section 9.96 and Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code if it is determined by 
the Director of Finance that issuance of fully registered securities in that form 
will facilitate the sale and delivery of the Notes.  The Notes shall not have 
coupons attached, shall be numbered as determined by the Director of Finance 
and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in summary terms, for which 
they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance.  As used 
in this Section and this Ordinance: 

“Book entry form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under 
which (a) the ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes and the principal of 
and interest on the Notes may be transferred only through a book entry, and 
(b) a single physical Note certificate in fully registered form is issued by the City 



- 4 - 

and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the 
certificate deposited with and “immobilized” in the custody of the Depository or 
its designated agent for that purpose.  The book entry maintained by others 
than the City is the record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in 
the Notes and that principal and interest. 

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a 
book entry system to record ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes or 
the principal of and interest on the Notes, and to effect transfers of the Notes, 
in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust 
Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York. 

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under 
a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and 
trust companies, and clearing corporations. 

The Notes may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system 
and, if and as long as a book entry system is utilized, (a) the Notes may be 
issued in the form of a single Note made payable to the Depository or its 
nominee and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its agent for that 
purpose; (b) the beneficial owners in book entry form shall have no right to 
receive the Notes in the form of physical securities or certificates; (c) ownership 
of beneficial interests in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the 
system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and 
transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be made only by book 
entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (d) the Notes as such shall 
not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository 
or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City. 

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for 
the Notes for use in a book entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt 
to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another 
qualified Depository.  If the Director of Finance does not or is unable to do so, 
the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of the beneficial 
owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, 
shall permit withdrawal of the Notes from the Depository, and shall cause the 
Notes in bearer or payable form to be signed by the officers authorized to sign 
the Notes and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at 
the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the 
result of City action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance. 

The Director of Finance is also hereby authorized and directed, to the 
extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements determined 
necessary in connection with the book entry system for the Notes, after 



- 5 - 

determining that the signing thereof will not endanger the funds or securities of 
the City. 

Section 6.  The Notes shall be sold at not less than par plus accrued 
interest (if any) at private sale by the Director of Finance in accordance with 
law and the provisions of this Ordinance.  The Director of Finance shall sign 
the Certificate of Award referred to in Section 3 fixing the interest rate or rates 
which the Notes shall bear and evidencing that sale to the original purchaser, 
cause the Notes to be prepared, and have the Notes signed and delivered, 
together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of 
the Notes if requested by the original purchaser, to the original purchaser upon 
payment of the purchase price.  The City Manager, the Director of Finance, the 
City Attorney, the City Clerk and other City officials, as appropriate, are each 
authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements 
and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are 
necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this 
Ordinance.  The Director of Finance is authorized, if it is determined to be in 
the best interest of the City, to combine the issue of Notes with one or more 
other note issues of the City into a consolidated note issue pursuant to 
Section 133.30(B) of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 7.  The proceeds from the sale of the Notes received by the City 
(or withheld by the original purchaser on behalf of the City) shall be paid into 
the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be 
used for the purpose for which the Notes are being issued.  The Certificate of 
Award may authorize the original purchaser to withhold certain proceeds from 
the sale of the Notes to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on 
behalf of the City.  Any portion of those proceeds received by the City (after 
payment of those financing costs) representing premium or accrued interest 
shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund. 

Section 8.  The par value to be received from the sale of the Bonds or of 
any renewal notes and any excess funds resulting from the issuance of the 
Notes shall, to the extent necessary, be used to pay the debt charges on the 
Notes at maturity and are pledged for that purpose. 

Section 9.  During the year or years in which the Notes are outstanding, 
there shall be levied on all the taxable property in the City, in addition to all 
other taxes, the same tax that would have been levied if the Bonds had been 
issued without the prior issuance of the Notes.  The tax shall be within the ten-
mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified, 
levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, 
in the same manner, and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for 
each of those years are certified, levied, extended and collected, and shall be 
placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount 
thereof.  The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement 



- 6 - 

Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the 
Notes or the Bonds when and as the same fall due. 

In each year to the extent receipts from the municipal income tax are 
available for the payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds and 
are appropriated for that purpose, the amount of the tax shall be reduced by 
the amount of such receipts so available and appropriated in compliance with 
the following covenant.  To the extent necessary, the debt charges on the Notes 
or the Bonds shall be paid from municipal income taxes lawfully available 
therefor under the Constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio and the 
Charter of the City; and the City hereby covenants, subject and pursuant to 
such authority, including particularly Section 133.05(B)(7) of the Ohio Revised 
Code, to appropriate annually from such municipal income taxes such amount 
as is necessary to meet such annual debt charges. 

Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the 
irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit and general property taxing power 
of the City to the prompt payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the 
Bonds. 

Section 10.  The City covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use 
and investment of, the proceeds of the Notes in such manner and to such 
extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Notes will not (i) constitute private 
activity bonds or arbitrage bonds under Sections 141 or 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) or (ii) be treated other than as 
bonds the interest on which is excluded from gross income under Section 103 
of the Code, and (b) the interest on the Notes will not be an item of tax 
preference under Section 57 of the Code. 

The City further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such 
actions that may be required of it for the interest on the Notes to be and remain 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (b) it will not take 
or authorize to be taken any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion, 
and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of compliance, (i) 
apply the proceeds of the Notes to the governmental purpose of the borrowing, 
(ii) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely and adequate 
payments to the federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make 
calculations and reports and (v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, 
and, as applicable, of property financed with such proceeds, all in such 
manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest 
under the Code. 

The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having 
responsibility for issuance of the Notes is hereby authorized (a) to make or 
effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver 
on behalf of the City with respect to the Notes as the City is permitted to or 



- 7 - 

required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without 
limitation thereto, any of the elections available under Section 148 of the Code, 
for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or 
status of the Notes or interest thereon or assisting compliance with 
requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such 
compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties with respect 
to the Notes, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making 
computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating 
those amounts or payments with respect to the Notes, which action shall be in 
writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or 
obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and 
certifications of and on behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the 
exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the 
Notes, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the City, for 
inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Notes, setting forth the 
reasonable expectations of the City regarding the amount and use of all the 
proceeds of the Notes, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they 
are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of 
the interest on and the tax status of the Notes.  The Director of Finance or any 
other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance of the Notes is 
specifically authorized to designate the Notes as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” if such designation is applicable and desirable, and to make any 
related necessary representations and covenants. 

Each covenant made in this Section with respect to the Notes is also 
made with respect to all issues any portion of the debt service on which is paid 
from proceeds of the Notes (and, if different, the original issue and any 
refunding issues in a series of refundings), to the extent such compliance is 
necessary to assure the exclusion of interest on the Notes from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, and the officers identified above are authorized 
to take actions with respect to those issues as they are authorized in this 
Section to take with respect to the Notes. 

Section 11.  The Director of Finance is directed to promptly deliver a 
certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Auditor of Delaware County, 
Ohio. 

Section 12.  The Director of Finance is authorized to request a rating for 
the Notes from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or Standard & Poor’s Ratings 
Services, or both, as the Director of Finance determines is in the best interest 
of the City.  The expenditure of the amounts necessary to secure any such 
ratings as well as to pay the other financing costs (as defined in Section 133.01 
of the Ohio Revised Code) in connection with the Notes is hereby authorized 
and approved and the amounts necessary to pay those costs are hereby 
appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if available, and otherwise from 
available moneys in the General Fund. 



- 8 - 

Section 13.  The legal services of the law firm of Squire Patton Boggs (US) 
LLP are hereby retained.  Those legal services shall be in the nature of legal 
advice and recommendations as to the documents and the proceedings in 
connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the Notes and 
securities issued in renewal of the Notes and rendering at delivery related legal 
opinions, all as set forth in the form of engagement letter from that firm which 
is now on file in the office of the City Clerk.  In providing those legal services, 
as an independent contractor and in an attorney-client relationship, that firm 
shall not exercise any administrative discretion on behalf of this City in the 
formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds, enforcement of laws, 
rules and regulations of the State, any county or municipal corporation or of 
this City, or the execution of public trusts.  For those legal services that firm 
shall be paid just and reasonable compensation and shall be reimbursed for 
actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in providing those legal services.  The 
Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification 
as to the availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to 
issue an appropriate order for their timely payment as written statements are 
submitted by that firm.  The amounts necessary to pay those fees and any 
reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if 
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund. 

Section 14.  This Council determines that all acts and conditions 
necessary to be done or performed by the City or to have been met precedent to 
and in the issuing of the Notes in order to make them legal, valid and binding 
general obligations of the City have been performed and have been met, or will 
at the time of delivery of the Notes have been performed and have been met, in 
regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and 
general property taxing power (as described in Section 9) of the City are 
pledged for the timely payment of the debt charges on the Notes; and that no 
statutory or constitutional limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been 
exceeded in the issuance of the Notes. 

Section 15.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council or any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the 
public, all in compliance with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 

Section 16.  This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health, 
safety and welfare of the City, and for the further reason that this Ordinance is 
required to be immediately effective in order to issue and sell the Notes, which 
is necessary to enable the City to timely retire the Outstanding Notes and 



- 9 - 

thereby preserve its credit; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
PASSED:  , 2017 YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 CITY CLERK   MAYOR 
 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 12    DATE: 03/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-11    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       March 13, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND  913.14 OF CHAPTER 
913 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
ESTABLISHING TAP FEES AND WATER RATES AND REPEALING EXISTING 
SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND 913.14. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This ordinance increases the City’s water utility rates.  Water rates were last 
increased in 2012.  Operating costs have seen typical inflationary increases with 
the exception of electric costs at the water plant.  As the new membrane filtration 
system came online in 2015, electric costs at the plant have more than doubled 
adding an additional $200,000 to annual operating costs.  The ordinance also 
increases tap fees for installation of water meters on new construction.    
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To adjust water rates to the current level of expenditures. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Finance Committee – Recommended bringing rate change ordinance to City 
Council. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
2017 Budget included a small water rate increase. 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer 
Brad Stanton 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Go to second reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo from Finance Director 
Historical Utility Rate summary 
Utility Funds financial reports 















ORDINANCE NO. 17-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND  
913.14 OF CHAPTER 913 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
ESTABLISHING TAP FEES AND WATER RATES AND 
REPEALING EXISTING SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND 
913.14. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Section 913.03(a) of Chapter 913 of the Codified 
Ordinances of the City of Delaware is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety 
by the following new section: 
 
913.03. – Furnishing service where facilities do not exist. 
 
(a)  At the time of application for new service, the applicant shall pay a tap fee as  
follows: 
 

Size of Tap  
(inches) City Makes Tap  Owner/Contractor Makes Tap 

3/4 or 5/8  $350 $700 + meter cost  Meter + inspection fee  
1 $400 $800 + meter cost  Meter + inspection fee 

Over 1 Total Cost  Meter + inspection fee 
  
     On all services larger than one inch installed by the City, the applicant shall 
pay the tap fee as follows: two hundred dollars ($200) at the time of application 
of the tap and the balance of the tap fee within thirty days of billing. 
 

 
SECTION 2.  That Section 913.14 of Chapter 913 of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Delaware is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety 
by the following new section: 
 
913.14 – Rates for water service inside City. 
 
The following rates shall be charged for water furnished by the City to users 
inside the corporate limits of the City.  The minimum charge for the first 200 
cubic feet per month shall be: 
 

Meter Size  
(inches) 

As of May 1,  
2010 

As of May 1,  
2011 

As of May 1,  
2012 

As of May 1,  
2017 

5/8 $7.97  $9.16  $10.36  $10.98  
3/4 $11.97  $13.77  $15.56  $16.49  
1 $17.71  $20.37  $23.01  $24.39  



Meter Size  
(inches) 

As of May 1,  
2010 

As of May 1,  
2011 

As of May 1,  
2012 

As of May 1,  
2017 

1½ $35.90  $41.29  $46.66  $49.46  
2 $50.20  $57.73  $65.23  $69.14  
3 $103.43  $118.95  $134.41  $142.47  
4 $166.82  $191.84  $216.78  $229.79  
6 $287.17  $330.24  $373.17  $395.56  
8 $505.46  $581.28  $656.84  $696.25  

 
For consumption in excess of the minimum, regardless of meter size charges 
shall be:   

 
 Rate per 100 

Cubic Feet 
Rate per 100 
Cubic Feet 

Rate per 100 
Cubic Feet 

Rate per 100 
Cubic Feet 

Consumption  
(Cubic Feet)* 

As of May 1,  
2010 

As of May 1,  
2011 

As of May 1,  
2012 

As of May 1,  
2017 

Minimum to 3,000 $3.14  $3.61  $4.08  $4.32  
3,001 to 47,000 $2.20  $2.53  $2.86  $3.03  
47,000 and over $1.52  $1.75  $1.98  $2.10  
 
* Consumption is rounded off to nearest 100 cubic feet 
 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
  
   
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       _____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

https://www.municode.com/library/oh/delaware/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHTROFDEOH_ARTIINFOGOPOGE_S4EXPO


  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 13    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-12    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       March 13, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE REFUSE COLLECTION AND UTILITY 
SERVICES PORTIONS OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Annually the City reviews various fees and service charges to determine whether 
the amounts charged are appropriate.  For 2017 staff is recommending changes 
to refuse rates, as outlined in the 2017 Solid Waste Management Program 
Update. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To update service fees. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Finance Committee – Recommended bringing the refuse rate change ordinance 
to City Council. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Proposed increase in residential refuse rates and reductions in the dumpster 
rates.  The rate changes will somewhat offset each other although a slight 
increase in total revenue is projected. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



Potential policy changes in the City’s refuse service will be discussed. 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bill Ferrigno 
Dean Stelzer 
Brad Stanton 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE REFUSE 
COLLECTION AND UTILITY SERVICES PORTIONS OF 
THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES. 

 
 WHEREAS, as part of the yearly review of the fees established in Delaware 
Codified Ordinance Section 197.01 it has been determined that the refuse 
collection rates should be amended; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Refuse Collection and Utility Services portions of 197.02 
are amended as follows: 
 
197.02 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

REFUSE COLLECTION 
SOURCE OF 

FEE 
 

FEE TITLE 
 

AMOUNT 
929.08 Domestic Refuse 

Collection 
$19.73 $20.60 per month 
 
Senior citizen discount rate: $9.87 
$10.30 per month 
 

929.08 Commercial Refuse 
Collection 

$19.73 $20.60 per month for basic 
service consisting of two 32 gallon or 
one 96 gallon tipcart –or- 10 bag tags 
 

929.08 Additional 96 Gallon 
Tipcarts 

2 total tipcarts $39.47 41.20 
3 total tipcarts $59.20 61.80 
4 total tipcarts $78.94 82.40 
5 total tipcarts $98.67 103.00 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Once Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $100.27 85.37 
3 cu. Yds $106.65 94.48 
4 cu. Yds $123.35 103.58 
6 cu. Yds $143.98 121.80 
8 cu. Yds $182.74 140.02 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Twice Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $200.44 170.74 
3 cu. Yds $213.28 188.95 
4 cu. Yds $239.00 207.17 
6 cu. Yds $277.72 243.60 
8 cu. Yds $343.06 280.04 



929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Three Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $298.06 256.10 
3 cu. Yds $319.89 283.43 
4 cu. Yds $354.66 310.75 
6 cu. Yds $411.43 365.41 
8 cu. Yds $507.55 420.06 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Four Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $395.63 341.47 
3 cu. Yds $426.51 377.91 
4 cu. Yds $470.31 414.34 
6 cu. Yds $545.14 487.21 
8 cu. Yds $672.04 560.08 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Five Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $493.26 426.84 
3 cu. Yds $533.15 472.38 
4 cu. Yds $585.97 517.92 
6 cu. Yds $678.84 609.01 
8 cu. Yds $836.54 700.09 

929.08 Additional pickup – 
Commercial Refuse 
Customers 

2 cu. yds: $23.13 85.37 
3 cu. Yds $24.62 94.48 
4 cu. Yds $28.46 103.58 
6 cu. Yds $33.23 121.80 
8 cu. Yds $42.17 140.02 

929.08 Bag tags (used for trash 
in excess of tipcart) 

1.50 per tag 

929.08 Discontinuation/reactiva
tion/change in service 
level of refuse services 

$12.50  

 
 

UTILITY SERVICES  
SOURCE OF 

FEE  FEE TITLE  AMOUNT  

911.01  Utility Turn On Charge  $12.50  

911.04  Penalty for Nonpayment  5% of bill + $15.00 + [$25.00 for 
returned checks]  

911.05  Delinquent water 
reconnection fee  $25.00  

913.04  Temporary Water Service  
$75.00 for outlet one-inch or less  
$150.00 for outlet greater than one 
inch  

913.05  Temporary water turn 
off/on  $25.00  

913.03  Tap Fees  See Section 913.03  



913.13  Meter Rules and 
Regulations  

Certain water meters shall be 
provided by the Utility 
Department, Water Division at the 
cost of the meter to the City. This 
is currently $90.00 $160 for a 5/8 
— 3/4 meter. 

913.14  Rates for water service 
inside city  See Section 913.14  

913.15  Rates for water service 
outside city  

50% surcharge to schedule of fees 
for water rates.  

913.25  Sale of water for resale  $2.73 per 100 cubic foot  

913.23  Sewer auxiliary meter  $25.00 inspection plus $8.35 
monthly service fee  

917.21  Sewer Capacity Fee  See Section 917.21  

917.14  Sewer Service Charges  See Section 917.14  
 
 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 14    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-19 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A SISTER CITY VISIT TO SAKATA, JAPAN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2012, City Council sent a delegation to sister city Baumholder Germany. In 
advance of that trip, legislation was introduced to declare the trip a public 
purpose and allow a portion of the trip to be paid for by the city.  That resolution 
did not pass and members paid for the trip on their own.  The City and Sakata 
have not established a formal sister city relationship yet, however that is planned 
to be established.  Sakata sent a delegation to Delaware in 2015 with the 
expectation that the City would reciprocate. A visit is planned to Sakata in April 
2017, which will include a delegation of five as follows: 
 
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
R. Thomas Homas, City Manager 
Chuck Stinemetz, Provost OWU 
Jeffrey Sprague, NEX Transport, Inc. Representative 
Joanne Meyers, Delaware City Schools Representative 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
The attached resolution establishes the visit as a public purposes and authorizes 
the use of public funds to help pay for it.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-19 
 
 A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A SISTER CITY VISIT 

TO SAKATA, JAPAN. 
 

WHEREAS, City Council believes strengthening and maintaining Sister 
City relationships and exploring new partnerships is valuable and necessary to 
the on-going economic and cultural growth of the City of Delaware; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has established several Sister City 

relationships through the years; the first in 1963 with Goulborn, New South 
Wales, Australia, as a part of the “People-to-People Programs: established by 
President Dwight D. Eisenhower, and then with Omuntninsk, Russia, and 
Baumholder, Germany; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City previously sent a delegation of City officials to sister 

city Baumholder, Germany; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City hosted representatives from Sakata, Japan to 

establish a Sister City relationship in November of 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sakata has extended a formal invitation to the 

City of Delaware to send a delegation to Sakata, Japan. 
 
WHEREAS, the exchange of information and ideas between sister cities 

continues to benefit the City of Delaware. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. Sending representatives of the City of Delaware to Sakata, 
Japan as part of the delegation achieves a public purpose. 
 
 SECTION 2. Public funds, as budgeted in the City’s 2017 travel/training 
line item, may be used to pay the costs of participating in the delegation. 
 
 SECTION 3.  Any travel expenses must conform with the City’s travel 
reimbursement policy. 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 03/13/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-20 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       April 10, 2017 at 7:15 p.m.  
                                                              Public Comment 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S BIKE MASTER PLAN 
2025. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The City of Delaware entered into a contract in June of 2015 with Stantec 
Consulting Services to perform an update of the bike plan for the City. The plan 
and recommendations were presented to the Parks and Recreation Board on 
October 18, 2016.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The adoption of the Bike Plan 2025 outlines and ranks the proposed projects to 
be implemented  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parks and Recreation Board 
recommendation at the February 21, 2017 meeting. The Planning Commission 
recommended approval at the March 01, 2017 meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The fiscal impacts are on an annual basis and will be partially offset by impact 
fees and grants.  



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Various 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Bike Plan 2025 
Priority Trail Projects- east 
Priority Trail Projects-west 
Priority Trail Projects-south 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-20 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE’S BIKE MASTER PLAN 2025.  

 
WHEREAS, a need exists to update the 2010 Bikeway Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware entered into an agreement with Stantec 

Consulting Services to complete an assessment of existing conditions, a public 
engagement and visioning process, and recommendations to implement the 
vision; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorsed the plan 

on February 21, 2017 as outlined in the attached exhibits; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment will be taken on April 10, 2017. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  Adopt the Bike Plan 2025 as outlined in the attached exhibits. 
 
That this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 16    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-13    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE NAMING ACTING CITY CLERKS FOR THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The previous Acting City Clerk, Michele Kohler retired in January 2017.   On 
March 13, 2017 Kim Gepper will assume the position as Executive Assistant to 
the City Manager.  Therefore she will need to be named Acting City Clerk along 
with R. Thomas Homan, City Manager.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
In the absence of the City Clerk, it will be necessary for the Acting City Clerks to 
accept petitions, annexations, other filings, as well as, certifying and signing 
various documents.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 



 ORDINANCE 17-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE NAMING ACTING CITY CLERKS FOR 
THE CITY OF DELAWARE, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appoint Acting City Clerks to accept petitions, 

annexations, and other filings in the absence of the City Clerk; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  That R. Thomas Homan, City Manager and Kim Gepper, 
Executive Assistant, are hereby appointed Acting City Clerks for the City Delaware 
for the purpose of receiving service and other filings on behalf of the City Clerk. 

 
SECTION 2.   That all prior appointments of Acting City Clerk are hereby 

void.  
 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE: That in order to provide for the usual 
daily operation of the various departments of the municipal government and to 
provide for the public peace, safety, health and welfare this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE:     YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
  
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 17    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-14    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE PERMITTING THE SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL 
BY THE GREENSWELL FOUNDATION C/O NEW MOON HALF & QUARTER 
MARATHON EVENT TO BE HELD ON MAY 27, 2017, COURSE MAP ATTACHED 
HERETO IN THE CITY OF DELAWARE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is the third year for this event and it is to be held Saturday, May 27, 2017. 
Plans again this year are to have a beer garden located on Sandusky Street. 
Proceeds from the Celebration Area will support the Greenswell Foundation, as 
outlined in the Greenswell Foundation Submission Process. The event organizer 
has reviewed and agreed to comply with all of the proposed guidelines regarding 
serving alcohol on City property.  
 
Note:  Pursuant to ORC 4301.82, Effective 4/30/2017, the City is eligible to 
pursue an Outdoor Refreshment Area. If Council is interested in considering 
establishing an Outdoor Refreshment Area, there are both minimum 
requirements and procedural steps that must be met in order to create the area. 
This shall be discussed at a future council meeting.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This legislation is required in order to allow a beer garden on Sandusky Street, 
which can only be permitted by City Council. 
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Special Events Committee recommends approval  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Craig Thompson, Greenswell, Event Organizer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
F Permit Application 
Map 
Greenswell Foundation Submission Process 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-14 
 AN ORDINANCE PERMITTING THE SALE AND 

CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL BY THE GREENSWELL 
FOUNDATION C/O NEW MOON HALF & QUARTER 
MARATHON EVENT TO BE HELD ON MAY 27, 2017 
COURSE MAP ATTACHED HERETO IN THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Greenswell Foundation c/o New Moon Half & Quarter 
Marathon has requested permission for the sale and consumption of alcohol for 
their event to be held Saturday, May 27, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the New Moon Half & Quarter Marathon raises monies for 
the Greenswell Foundation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City of Delaware Ordinances may prohibit the consumption 
of upon city streets, and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council desires to support the efforts of the Greenswell 
Foundation c/o New Moon Half & Quarter Marathon, and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, Ohio that: 
  
 SECTION 1.  That the provisions of any ordinance or policy of the City of 
Delaware that would prohibit the sale and consumption of alcohol at the 
Greenswell Foundation c/o New Moon Half & Quarter Marathon event on 
Saturday, May 27, 2017 between the hours of 6 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. in the 
area set forth in attachment hereto, be waived as they may be applied to the 
New Moon Half & Quarter Marathon event. 
 
 SECTION 2. That Greenswell Foundation c/o New Moon Half & Quarter 
Marathon will secure all proper permits from the State of Ohio to allow it to 
serve alcohol during the event. 
 

SECTION 3. That Greenswell Foundation c/o New Moon Half & Quarter 
Marathon will secure all proper permits and comply with all guidelines from 
the City of Delaware for the event and closure streets. 
 

SECTION 4.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS____NAYS____  
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________        ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



Greenswell Foundation
Submission Process

The Greenswell Foundation was established as a way for Greenswell to support health and wellness
initiatives in Central Ohio and the surrounding communities. The vision of the Greenswell Foundation
is to support a positive-lifestyle through philanthropy, volunteerism and grant making by supporting
various athletic, community, education, health, human services and public benefit organizations in
our event communities.

Volunteerism
The Greenswell Foundation Gives Back to Nonprofit Organizations with a Volunteerism Component.
In an effort to enhance the well-being of those in the communities where Greenswell events are held,
the Greenswell Foundation provides an opportunity for event athletes to showcase charitable support
to a variety of local non-profit organizations that recognize citizens in need and provide support to the
local community. This is by far the most common donation mechanism.

Within our Greenswell event communities, we offer a grant program to support organizations that have
a volunteerism component.

To find out more about volunteer opportunities available at our races, and to learn more about the
volunteer grant application process, please contact the volunteer director at
volunteer@greenswell.com.

Triathlon For Hope
Since its inception in 2011, triathlon has been distinctive in its inclusion of female only competitors. In
keeping with the unique spirit of our sport, the Triathlon For Hope goal is to increase female
participation, create awareness about early detection of breast cancer, and to donate event proceeds to
the Stefanie Spielman Fund For Breast Cancer Research at Ohio State University’s James Comprehensive
Cancer Center and Solove Research Institute. To date, the event has raised and donated greater than
$15,000 to help fund research.

Community
Organizations located in our race communities are invited to submit an application for a Greenswell
Foundation Community Grant. While the Foundation supports a broad range of organizations, our 2017
funding priority will give preference to those organizations and projects that will:

 Meet an identified need specific to that race community;
 Can report a measurable impact at the conclusion of the grant period;
 Leverage additional funds or secure match funding, therefore increasing the impact of the grant

award.

To be considered for a community grant involves the following Steps:

Step 1: Letter of Inquiry
Step 2: Formal Proposal
Step 3: Review Process



The Greenswell Foundation accepts grant inquiries throughout the year. Applicants should anticipate
the application process to take approximately four to six months from the initial submission of the letter
of inquiry to the receipt of funding. Grant awards will range between $250 - $5,000.

Step 1: Letter of Inquiry
Before submitting a formal proposal to the Foundation, prospective applicants should write a one page
letter of inquiry outlining the proposed project and send it to the attention of
craigthompson@greenswell.com. The letter should describe the goals of the project, how it relates to
the Foundation's interests, the target audience and beneficiaries, the estimated budget and duration,
and plans for evaluation and dissemination of findings.

Letters of inquiry should be submitted at least six to eight weeks prior to the proposal deadline for a
given grant cycle.

Step 2: Formal Proposal
The proposal should include the following information:

 Executive summary or overview (1/2-1 page) that includes why this project is important,
relevant, etc.;

 Information on the project for which funding is requested, including the issue to be addressed,
how the proposed project would address it, and plans for implementation, evaluation, and
dissemination of findings;

 Description of the organization, including its background, purpose, objectives, and experience
in the area for which funds are sought;

 Names and qualifications of people involved in the project or project/team lead;
 Internal Revenue Service Form 990 plus attachments for the most recently completed fiscal

year;
 Internal Revenue Service verification that the organization is a 501(c)(3) tax exempt

organization and qualifies as a public charity as defined in IRS Code section 509 (a)(1), (2), or (3).
A copy of the IRS tax-exempt determination letter must accompany the proposal.

Step 3: Review Process
When applying for financial support, grant seekers can expect a four-step application process:

 Letters of Inquiry: The applicant submits a one page letter of inquiry allowing for six to eight
weeks before the proposal deadline.

 Initial Review: If the project does fit within the guidelines, the applicant will be requested to
submit a full proposal. The program officer reviews the letter of inquiry and determines whether
or not the project fits within the Foundation's guidelines. If the project does not fit within the
guidelines, the program officer sends the applicant a decline letter.

 Review and Recommendation: Once the full proposal is received, an internal review process
begins.

o If the proposal is not approved for funding, the applicant will receive a decline letter.
o If the proposal is approved for funding, the applicant will be notified and receive a grant

agreement.
o Grant payments are normally made at within 14-21 days at which the funding decision

was made and grant agreement received.





















  ORDINANCE FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 18    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-15    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 821 CHESHIRE ROAD 
AS NOT NEEDED FOR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF 
THE STRUCTURES AT AUCTION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware owns the structures at 821 Cheshire Road, Delaware, Ohio 
which its estimated value exceeds $5,000.  It has been determined that the 
structures are not needed for municipal purposes and will be replaced by Fire 
Station 304, as specified in the Capital Improvement Budget.  There is no 
historical value to either structure. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The City has received some inquiries regarding individuals interested in 
removing/ moving the structures located at 821 Cheshire Road, Delaware, Ohio.  
Since the structures have no historical value nor are they of any municipal use 
the City would like to sell the structures for removal pursuant to Delaware City 
Code Section 108.02 under the procedures established therein. 

 
The Emergency Clause is needed so that the bidding process can move forward 
as soon as possible to allow time for construction of Station 304.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Selling the structures and not having to pay for their removal will save designated 
capital funds.    
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with an emergency clause. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-15 
 

AN ORDINACE DECLARING STRUCTURES LOCATED 
AT 821 CHESHIRE ROAD AS NOT NEEDED FOR 
MUNICIPAL PURPOSES, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF 
THE STRUCTURES AT AUCTION, AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is the owner of the structures at 
821 Cheshire Road, Delaware, Ohio which its estimated value exceeds 
$5,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has determined that the structures 

are not needed for municipal purposes and will be replaced by Fire 
Station 304, as specified in the Capital Improvement Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council finds that the structure has no historical 

value. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio that: 
 
SECTION 1.  The structures located at 821 Cheshire Road, 

Delaware, Ohio is sold pursuant to Delaware City Code Section 108.02 
under the procedures established therein. 

 
SECTION 2. The Assistant City Manager established a minimum 

bid of $5,001.00 for the structures and they shall not be sold for less 
than the minimum.  The structures will be advertised for sale on 
www.bidexpress.com.  Bids shall be submitted via Bid Express by a date 
and time to be established and sold to the highest bidder. 

 
SECTION 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to 
move forward with the construction of Fire Station 304, and as such will 
be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:  YEAS______   NAYS______ 
       ABSTAIN______ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS______   NAYS______ 
       ABSTAIN______ 
 
PASSED:_________________, 2017  YEAS______   NAYS______ 
       ABSTAIN______ 
 
ATTEST: _____________________     ____________________________ 
              CITY CLERK     MAYOR  





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 19    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-16    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       March 27, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 1168.07 
REPLACEMENT OF REMOVED TREES OF CHAPTER 1168 TREE 
PRESERVATION REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of the amendments to Chapter 1168 is to clearly identify the tree 
banking options for replacement trees and how any funds acquired via the 
payment in lieu of planting regulations can be spent.  The updated code clarifies 
for applicants (developers), staff and the public the processes outlined in current 
code as well as the current and past administrative practice of the City in this 
regard.  The intent of replacement and removed trees overall is to maintain an 
equivalent tree canopy Citywide before and after removal and/or construction.  
Overall then, the new code sections simply codify the current and past practices 
of the city while making this section much clearer. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130.04 Amendments initiated by Planning Commission or City 
Council 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on March 1, 2017. 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO 
CHAPTER 1168.07 REPLACEMENT OF REMOVED 
TREES OF CHAPTER 1168 TREE PRESERVATION 
REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
March 1, 2017, recommended approval of an amendment to Chapter 1168.07 
Replacement of Removed Trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of 
the Planning and Zoning Code (PC 2017-0014). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the amendment to Chapter 1168.07 Replacement of 
Removed Trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of the Planning and 
Zoning Code is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE:  03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-17    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR ISSUANCE OF REFUNDS RECEIVED FOR A FIRE 
LOSS THAT OCCURRED AT 48 HIGH STREET, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
In September 2016, the two-story rental home at 48 High Street was destroyed 
by fire, resulting in the tragic death of a 17-year-old Rutherford B. Hayes High 
School student. As per the Ohio Revised Code and the City’s Codified 
Ordinances, the sum of $9,333.33 was forwarded to the City of Delaware from 
the fire insurance proceeds to be held in escrow until such time the fire-damaged 
property is repaired, demolished, or sold. The property owner (the insured party) 
notified the City Chief Building Official of intent to sell the property. As evidenced 
by a recorded deed, the property was conveyed to the Habitat for Humanity of 
Delaware & Union Counties in February 2017. The property site is located within 
the Habitat for Humanity ‘focus neighborhood’ for redevelopment efforts. This 
fire-damaged property will be demolished by the Habitat Chapter and a new 
home for a Partner Family constructed in its place. The insured party, therefore, 
is requesting reimbursement of the fire insurance proceeds held by the City of 
Delaware since the claim can now be considered closed.  
 
 
 



 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This supplemental appropriation is needed to transfer the monies into the 
appropriate account to enable the reimbursement. The Emergency Clause is 
included to expedite closure of the outstanding claim.      
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None as equal funds were previously deposited with the City and will be 
reimbursed to the Property Owner.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with enactment of the Emergency 
Clause. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
1) Claim Documentation 
2) Recorded Deed to Habitat for Humanity 
3) Photograph 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-17 
 
 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 

APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FUNDING FOR ISSUANCE OF REFUNDS RECEIVED 
FOR A FIRE LOSS THAT OCCURRED AT 48 HIGH 
STREET, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware’s Codified Ordinance, Section 1321 

requires application for demolition, alteration, moving, and construction of 
structures within the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware’s Codified Ordinance, Section 1507.20 

authorizes the City to follow the requirements and procedures contained within 
Ohio Revised Code Section 3929.86 Fire Loss Claims; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware was provided funds through the 

insurance proceeds required by Section 3929.86 for the fire loss that occurred 
at 48 High Street; and  

 
WHEREAS, Foremost Insurance Group provided a check to the City in 

the amount of $9,333.33 for a fire loss at 48 High Street; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Owner and Insured Party of said Property has sold the 

Property located at 48 High Street to Habitat for Humanity of Delaware & 
Union Counties which has agreed to raze the structure; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has not incurred any cost attributable to the repair 

or demolition of the structure pursuant to the requirements of ORC 3929.86; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Insured Party would like and requested reimbursement 

of those funds pursuant to ORC 3929.86; and 
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to authorize 

funding for issuance of the refund. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Fund the amount of $9,333.33 thereby increasing the 
following account: 
 

Planning and Community Development 
  Refunds     (101-0061-5601)            $9,333.33 



   
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to allow 
for the expeditious demolition of a fire-damaged structure, and as such will be 
in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 

       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 21    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-18    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 2.856 ACRES OF LAND, 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS FIRE STATION #304 
ANNEXATION BY DAVID MOSER,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS, THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
David Moser, Assistant City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 



ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution 16-1287 
Petition 
Map 
City Ordinance No. 16-95 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
2.856 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION 
AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBITS “A” 
AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS FIRE 
STATION #304 ANNEXATION BY DAVID MOSER,  
AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS, THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE. 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on December 19, 2016 (See attached)  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 2.856 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Fire Station #304 Annexation David Moser, agent for 
the petitioners. 
 

SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 
ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
VOTE ON RULES SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 22    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-19    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR T&R PROPERTIES APPROVING A FINAL  DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE ENCLAVE AT ADALEE CONSISTING OF 96 SINGLE FAMILY 
ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 15.18 ACRES ZONED R-6 PUD 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH HOUK ROAD JUST 
NORTH OF ARTHUR PLACE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 1999 (Ordinance 99-76), Medrock LLC., received approval of a Planned Mixed 
Use Development (PUD) that encompassed approximately 282 acres essentially 
south of US 36, north of the railroad tracks, west of Acme Road and along and 
east of the Houk Road. The permitted land uses include single family, two family 
attached, multi-family, commercial and industrial uses. A large portion of this 
area has been built out which includes the following developments: Adalee Park, 
Millbrook,  Braddington Commons, Arthur Place, Village at Willowbrook Farms, 
Willowbrook East. In 2007, this portion of the Willowbrook PUD was subject to 
a rezoning which was coordinated with the initial submission for what became 
Arthur Place. In 2008, Arthur Place “flipped” sites and became located at its 
current site. This left the multi-family area in question in this case as the land 
remaining between the proposed retail and existing senior housing sites (Arthur 
Place). Also in 2008, the retail site underwent a rezoning which included some 
revised development text as well as the required mounding and landscaping 



along the south boundary of the retail site. All of the previous plans and changes 
have been reviewed with this case to ensure consistency and adherence to prior 
actions.    
Now the developer is proposing to develop 96 single family attached units on 96 
lots on approximately 15.18 acres for a density of 6.32 units per acre. The main 
access would be a full movement curb cut on South Houk Road adjacent to 
Rockmill Street with a second access point utilizing the northern most access 
point to Arthur Place which is a right-in/right-out only curb cut. The site layout 
would entail a looped street configuration with a main access drive bisecting the 
development.  An open space area with benches would be located behind the lots 
on Mara Avenue and Amelia Lane and include a sidewalk which would connect 
to the development mail box on the southeastern portion of the site on Isaac 
Lane. A retention pond is located along South Houk Road in the southeastern 
portion of the site. Just east of the retention pond is the exiting mound with 
landscaping that buffers South Houk Road and the subject development. Per the 
approved revised PUD development text, a proposed 8 to 12 foot high mound 
with landscaping would be located just north of the development to buffer the 
future commercial zoned property. There would be six common spaces located 
in front of the mailbox area on Isaac Lane and eight spaces on Blaise Lane on 
the northwestern portion of the site.  The subject 96 single family lots (owner 
occupied) would have a minimum lot size of 4,275 square feet (45-ft x 95-ft). The 
attached units would have a minimum front yard of 25 feet and a minimum rear 
yard setback of 18 feet while there would be a minimum 10 feet between units.  
Also, morning/sunroom(s) would be permitted on all interior lots as well as lots 
abutting South Houk Road. The morning/sunroom(s) shall have a minimum rear 
yard setback of 10 feet. In addition, each unit will be permitted a deck or patio 
that would need to be setback a minimum 10 feet from the rear property line. 
The minimum unit size is 1,350 square feet. Each unit would have a two car 
garage with a driveway which can accommodate parking for two vehicles. 
Furthermore, the subject condominium development would have a homeowners 
association that would have a common maintenance plan for lawn, landscaping 
and snow removal within the development. The intent of the design requirements 
is to mimic the Arthur Place ranch style attached units with a stone wainscoting 
and all the units would have an earth tone color to be harmonious and 
compatible with the adjacent neighborhoods while allowing a color pallet to 
provide unit diversification and visual integrity. Additionally, there would be only 
a maximum of two attached units giving a more single family development 
appearance. The applicant submitted a comprehensive landscape plan that 
includes street trees, open space landscaping and perimeter buffering along the 
northern property line. Individual building landscaping would be required per 
Chapter 1171. The Shade Tree Commission approved the landscape plan on 
February 28, 2017 with conditions. Also, the existing mounding along South 
Houk Road shall remain as constructed and planted.  Also, the lighting plans 
would need to achieve compliance with the zoning code and be approved by the 
Chief Building Official   

 



 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on March 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR T&R PROPERTIES APPROVING A 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE ENCLAVE AT 
ADALEE CONSISTING OF 96 SINGLE FAMILY 
ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 15.18 ACRES 
ZONED R-6 PUD (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH HOUK ROAD 
JUST NORTH OF ARTHUR PLACE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 1, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for The Enclave at Adalee 
consisting of 96 single family attached units on approximately 15.18 acres zoned 
R-6 PUD (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Unit Overlay District) 
located on the west side of South Houk Road just north of Arthur Place (PC 2017-
0197). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for T&R Properties for The 
Enclave at Adalee consisting of 96 single family attached units on approximately 
15.18 acres zoned R-6 PUD (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Unit 
Overlay District) located on the west side of South Houk Road just north of Arthur 
Place, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions 
that: 
1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 
change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 

2. Two curb cuts shall be required for the subject development. The existing 
right-in/right-out curb cut on the northern portion of the Arthur Place 
development shall be utilized as the second curb cut per the recorded 
access easement with Arthur Place in 2008. 

3. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24 foot wide 
private streets built to public street standards with no parking permitted 
on the streets. 

4. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate agencies 
to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording the Final Plat.  

5. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



6. All retention ponds shall be setback a minimum of 80 feet from the edge of 
pavement per the City Engineer. 

7. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements as shown on this plan. 

8. The single family attached units shall comply with the minimum 
architectural standards approved in the development text and include 
minimum 8 inch overhang, shutters, window trim, one garage light course, 
etc.   

9. The minimum attached unit house size shall be 1,350 square feet. 
10. A morning/sunroom shall be permitted on all interior lots as well as lots 

abutting South Houk Road. The morning/sunroom(s) shall have a minimum 
rear yard setback of 10 feet. 

11. Each unit shall be permitted a deck or patio that shall be setback a 
minimum 10 feet from the rear property line 

12. The mounding and landscaping along South Houk Road shall be 
maintained as constructed and the maintenance of the mound and 
associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the Homeowner’s 
Association. 

13. Along the northern boundary of the subject development, an undulating 
earthen mound ranging from 8 to 12 feet in height shall be installed to 
block views of the future commercial development to the north. A mix of 
deciduous, evergreen and ornamental tree plantings shall be provided on 
the top of the mound consistent with the existing South Houk Road 
landscape mound and shall have a minimum 60% opacity at the time of 
installation. The subject mound shall either be located on the subject 
property or within an easement with the property to the north.  

14. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 Design 
Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

15. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

16. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall be 
required prior to final plat approvals for each section.  

17. The open space between Maria Avenue and Amelia Lane shall be 
programmed with amenities as submitted. 

18. The lighting plan shall achieve compliance with the zoning code and shall 
be approved by the Chief Building Official. 

19. A sign permit application that includes more specific sign size, construction 
material, etc., shall be reviewed and approved by staff.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 



deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  23    DATE: 03/13/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-20    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR T&R PROPERTIES APPROVING A FINAL  SUBDIVISION 
PLAT PLAN FOR THE ENCLAVE AT ADALEE CONSISTING OF 96 SINGLE 
FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 15.18 ACRES ZONED R-6 
PUD (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH HOUK ROAD 
JUST NORTH OF ARTHUR PLACE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 1999 (Ordinance 99-76), Medrock LLC., received approval of a Planned Mixed 
Use Development (PUD) that encompassed approximately 282 acres essentially 
south of US 36, north of the railroad tracks, west of Acme Road and along and 
east of the Houk Road. The permitted land uses include single family, two family 
attached, multi-family, commercial and industrial uses. A large portion of this 
area has been built out which includes the following developments: Adalee Park, 
Millbrook,  Braddington Commons, Arthur Place, Village at Willowbrook Farms, 
Willowbrook East. In 2007, this portion of the Willowbrook PUD was subject to 
a rezoning which was coordinated with the initial submission for what became 
Arthur Place. In 2008, Arthur Place “flipped” sites and became located at its 
current site. This left the multi-family area in question in this case as the land 
remaining between the proposed retail and existing senior housing sites (Arthur 
Place). Also in 2008, the retail site underwent a rezoning which included some 
revised development text as well as the required mounding and landscaping 



along the south boundary of the retail site. All of the previous plans and changes 
have been reviewed with this case to ensure consistency and adherence to prior 
actions.    
Now the developer is proposing to develop 96 single family attached units on 96 
lots on approximately 15.18 acres for a density of 6.32 units per acre. The main 
access would be a full movement curb cut on South Houk Road adjacent to 
Rockmill Street with a second access point utilizing the northern most access 
point to Arthur Place which is a right-in/right-out only curb cut. The site layout 
would entail a looped street configuration with a main access drive bisecting the 
development.  An open space area with benches would be located behind the lots 
on Mara Avenue and Amelia Lane and include a sidewalk which would connect 
to the development mail box on the southeastern portion of the site on Isaac 
Lane. A retention pond is located along South Houk Road in the southeastern 
portion of the site. Just east of the retention pond is the exiting mound with 
landscaping that buffers South Houk Road and the subject development. Per the 
approved revised PUD development text, a proposed 8 to 12 foot high mound 
with landscaping would be located just north of the development to buffer the 
future commercial zoned property. There would be six common spaces located 
in front of the mailbox area on Isaac Lane and eight spaces on Blaise Lane on 
the northwestern portion of the site.  The subject 96 single family lots (owner 
occupied) would have a minimum lot size of 4,275 square feet (45-ft x 95-ft). The 
attached units would have a minimum front yard of 25 feet and a minimum rear 
yard setback of 18 feet while there would be a minimum 10 feet between units.  
Also, morning/sunroom(s) would be permitted on all interior lots as well as lots 
abutting South Houk Road. The morning/sunroom(s) shall have a minimum rear 
yard setback of 10 feet. In addition, each unit will be permitted a deck or patio 
that would need to be setback a minimum 10 feet from the rear property line. 
The minimum unit size is 1,350 square feet. Each unit would have a two car 
garage with a driveway which can accommodate parking for two vehicles. 
Furthermore, the subject condominium development would have a homeowners 
association that would have a common maintenance plan for lawn, landscaping 
and snow removal within the development. The intent of the design requirements 
is to mimic the Arthur Place ranch style attached units with a stone wainscoting 
and all the units would have an earth tone color to be harmonious and 
compatible with the adjacent neighborhoods while allowing a color pallet to 
provide unit diversification and visual integrity. Additionally, there would be only 
a maximum of two attached units giving a more single family development 
appearance. The applicant submitted a comprehensive landscape plan that 
includes street trees, open space landscaping and perimeter buffering along the 
northern property line. Individual building landscaping would be required per 
Chapter 1171. The Shade Tree Commission approved the landscape plan on 
February 28, 2017 with conditions. Also, the existing mounding along South 
Houk Road shall remain as constructed and planted.  Also, the lighting plans 
would need to achieve compliance with the zoning code and be approved by the 
Chief Building Official   

 



 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111.04 Final Plat requirements of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on March 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR T&R PROPERTIES APPROVING A 
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT PLAN FOR THE ENCLAVE AT 
ADALEE CONSISTING OF 96 SINGLE FAMILY 
ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 15.18 ACRES 
ZONED R-6 PUD (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH HOUK ROAD 
JUST NORTH OF ARTHUR PLACE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of March 1, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat for The Enclave at Adalee 
consisting of 96 single family attached units on approximately 15.18 acres zoned 
R-6 PUD (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Unit Overlay District) 
located on the west side of South Houk Road just north of Arthur Place (PC 2017-
0198). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat for T&R Properties for The 
Enclave at Adalee consisting of 96 single family attached units on approximately 
15.18 acres zoned R-6 PUD (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Unit 
Overlay District) located on the west side of South Houk Road just north of Arthur 
Place, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions 
that: 
1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 
change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 

2. Two curb cuts shall be required for the subject development. The existing 
right-in/right-out curb cut on the northern portion of the Arthur Place 
development shall be utilized as the second curb cut per the recorded 
access easement with Arthur Place in 2008. 

3. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24 foot wide 
private streets built to public street standards with no parking permitted 
on the streets. 

4. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate agencies 
to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording the Final Plat.  

5. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



6. All retention ponds shall be setback a minimum of 80 feet from the edge of 
pavement per the City Engineer. 

7. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements as shown on this plan. 

8. The single family attached units shall comply with the minimum 
architectural standards approved in the development text and include 
minimum 8 inch overhang, shutters, window trim, one garage light course, 
etc.   

9. The minimum attached unit house size shall be 1,350 square feet. 
10. A morning/sunroom shall be permitted on all interior lots as well as lots 

abutting South Houk Road. The morning/sunroom(s) shall have a minimum 
rear yard setback of 10 feet. 

11. Each unit shall be permitted a deck or patio that shall be setback a 
minimum 10 feet from the rear property line 

12. The mounding and landscaping along South Houk Road shall be 
maintained as constructed and the maintenance of the mound and 
associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the Homeowner’s 
Association. 

13. Along the northern boundary of the subject development, an undulating 
earthen mound ranging from 8 to 12 feet in height shall be installed to 
block views of the future commercial development to the north. A mix of 
deciduous, evergreen and ornamental tree plantings shall be provided on 
the top of the mound consistent with the existing South Houk Road 
landscape mound and shall have a minimum 60% opacity at the time of 
installation. The subject mound shall either be located on the subject 
property or within an easement with the property to the north.  

14. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 Design 
Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

15. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

16. Any tree removal and/or replacement requirements shall achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and shall be 
required prior to final plat approvals for each section.  

17. The open space between Maria Avenue and Amelia Lane shall be 
programmed with amenities as submitted. 

18. The lighting plan shall achieve compliance with the zoning code and shall 
be approved by the Chief Building Official. 

19. A sign permit application that includes more specific sign size, construction 
material, etc., shall be reviewed and approved by staff.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 



this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



City Manager Report 20170227 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: March 13, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 February 22 
  * OCMA Conference 
 February 23 
  * OCMA Conference 
 February 24 
  * OCMA Conference 
 February 27 
  * Rotary Meeting 
  * Recreation Levy Sub-Committee 
  * City Council 
 February 28 
  * SourcePoint Donor Appreciation Dinner 
 March 2 
  * MORPC 
 March 7   
  *  Sakata Delegation Meeting 
 March 8  
  * 2017 Economic Forum 
 March 9 
  * MORPC Commission and Transportation Policy Committee 
 
  
 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – March 13, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
SourcePoint Services Coordination to Older Adults $0.00 Police 
     




	01 20170313 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 council minutes 20170227
	03 rec levy sub-com minutes 20150622
	04 20161130 minutes hpc
	05 shade tree minutes 20170128
	06 planning minutes 20170201
	07 fact sheet res 17-16 committee appointments
	08 res 17-16 committee appoints
	09 res 17-16 appointment members letters
	10 fact sheet res 17-17 tirc
	11 res 17-17 tirc
	12 res 17- tirc sign in sheet
	13 res 17- 2017 TIRC Meeting Minutes
	14 res 17- TIRC_Report_2017
	CRA-EZ
	TIF
	Residential CRA

	15 fact sheet res 17-18  clean fuels ohio
	16 res 17-18 clean fuels ohio
	17 fact sheet res 17-14 no parking beuhler dr lexington blvd
	18 res 17-14 Buehler Dr  Lexington Blvd No Parking  Traffic Striping Modifications
	19 Buehler Dr  Lexington Signage  Striping Revised Exhibit A 022317
	20 fact sheet res 17-15 HVGC Rates
	21 res 17-15  HVGC Rates
	22 res 17-15 hvgc price proposal
	23 res 17-15 hidden valley report
	24 fact sheet ord 17-10 note renewal $11,015,000
	25 ord 17-10 note renewal
	26 ord 17-10 note renewal attachments
	27 fact sheet ord 17-11 water rate utility increase
	28 ord 17-11 water rate increase attachments
	29 ord 17-11 water utility rate increase
	30 fact sheet ord 17-12 refuse utility rate
	31 ord 17-12 refuse fee rate
	32 solid waste mgmt program update
	33 fact sheet res 17-19 sakata trip
	34 res 17-19 sakata trip
	35 fact sheet res 17-20 bike plan 2025
	36 res 17-20 bike plan 2025
	37 2017-0324 Bike Plan Memo
	38 Draft Bike Plan
	Bike Plan
	1. Executive Summary
	2. Introduction
	3. Existing Conditions
	4. Public Engagement and Vision
	5. Recommendations and Implementation
	Exhibit 6-1: Bike Network Plan
	Table 6-1s: Safety Projects
	Table 6-1a: Infrastructure Improvements, Ordered by RankProj.No. Project Name Rank Sponsors,Partners
	Table 6-1b: Infrastructure Improvements, Ordered by Project Number


	Appendices
	Appendix A
	Exhibit 3-1 Barriers and Bikeable Districts
	Exhibit 3-2 Existing Bikeway Network
	Exhibit 3-3 Bikeway Condition 
Inventory, 2008
	Exhibit 3-4 Bikeway Condition
Inventory, 2015
	Exhibit 3-4 (Modified) Bikeway Condition Inventory, 2015With Ownership Information
	Exhibit 3-5 Spot Maintenance Activitiesand Condition Inventory, 2015
	Condition Inventory Methodology 2008, 2015

	Appendix B
	Internet-Based Survey and Results
	Public Meeting Exhibits
	Bike Parking Safe Crossings Destinations
	Policy_and_Programming
	Project Corridors
	Vision and Values

	Off-Site Feedback Stations
	Corridor_Feedback_Library-Station
	Corridor_Feedback_YMCA-Station

	Public Comments



	39 fact sheet ord 17-13 acting city clerk
	39 ord 17-13  name acting clerk
	40 fact sheet ord 17-14  new moon liquor sales
	41 ord 17-14 new moon liquor sales
	42 ord 17-14 new moon liquor sales Greenswell Foundation Grant Process 2017
	43 ord 17-14  new moon liqour sales F permit app
	44 fact sheet ord 17-15 cheshire rd sale
	45 ord 17-15 cheshire rd structure bid
	46 ord 17-15 821 cheshire rd picture
	47 fact sheet ord 17-16  amend 1168 tree preservation
	48 ord 17-16  amend chapter 1168 tree preservation
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-16
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	49 ord 17-16 amend chapter 1168 tree staff report
	50 fact sheet ord 17- supplemental
	51 ord 17-17 suppl 48 high st
	52 ord 17-17  supplement 48 high street attach claim deed photo
	53 fact sheet ord 17-18  accept annex fire station #304
	54 ord 17-18  accept annex fire station #304
	55 ord 17-18 annex fire station #304 attachment
	56 fact sheet ord 17-19 enclave at adalee fin dev plan
	57 ord 17- 19 enclave at adalee fin dev plan
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-19
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	58 ord 17-  Enclaves at Adalee staff report
	59 fact sheet ord 17-20 enclaves at adalee subdiv plat
	60 ord 17-20 enclave at adalee fin subdiv plat
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-20
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	61 city managers report 20170313
	62 20170313 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – March 13, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Police
	$0.00
	SourcePoint
	Services Coordination to Older Adults


	62 march calender



